
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 
601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor   City Attorney 
Felicia M. Harris, Mayor Pro Tem     Brian D. Corry 
Lance Sabbe, Commissioner 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner              City Manager 
Gwen Atkinson-Williams, Commissioner   Regina M. McDuffie 

www.brunswickga.org 
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2024 AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of February 7, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda.
PUBLIC COMMENT 
RECOGNITION(S), PRESENTATION(S), & AWARD(S)
2. Dr. Ande Noktes, Executive Director, Lucas Center for Entrepreneurship to Report on the Impact of 
Funding for the ACCELER8 Program.  (Encl. 1)
APPOINTMENT(S)  
3. 

I. Pilotage Commission – One Appointment
II. Planning and Appeals Commission – One Appointment

III. Audit Committee – One Appointment
IV. Tree Board - One Appointment

PUBLIC HEARING – NEW ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE(S) (A. Brown) 
4. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Fountain 
Package 

Owner: Mukeshkumar Patel, 
Manager: Dharmendra Patel 

2300 Norwich St. 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail package sales of beer, 
wine, and liquor 

Dixville 
Foods 

Owner: Vaibhavi Patel 
Manager: Axitkumar Patel 

1509 London St. 
Brunswick, GA 

Retail sales of beer and wine 

http://www.brunswickga.org/
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


Page 2 
February 7, 2024 
Brunswick City Commission Agenda 

ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
5. Approval of January 17, 2024 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary

changes.)  (N. Atkinson) (Encl. 2)
6. Consider Approval of Alcohol License Renewal for Cool on Cool.  (A. Brown) (Encl. 3)
7. Consider Approval of 3210 Glynn Avenue Site Plan Approval. (J. Hunter) (Encl. 4)
8. Consider Approval of Pension Amendment Number 17.  (C. Cartwright) (Encl. 5)
9. Consider Approval of November and December 2023 Financial Reports.  (K. Mills) (Encl. 6)
10. Consider Approval Public Works Department Surplus Vehicles. (R. Charnock) (Encl. 7)
11. Consider Approval of Improvements to Howard Coffin Park Athletic Fields.  (G. Alberson) (Encl. 8)
12. Consider Approval Authorizing the Purchase of a Street Sweeper from Tymco in the amount

of $361,465.  (G. Alberson) (Encl. 9)
13. Consider Approval of Contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. for Landscape Maintenance Services at 

City Parks and Public Areas along U.S. Highway 17 Corridor.  (G. Alberson) (Encl. 10)
14. Consider Approval of Repairs at Old City Hall (1229 Newcastle Street).  (M. Hill) (Encl. 11)
15. Consider Approval Authorizing the Purchase of a Vehicle for Emergency Management Agency

(EMA) Coordinator.  (L. Cargile) (Encl. 12)
EXECUTIVE SESSION 



 

 

Subject: _______Lucas Center Outcomes and Collaboration with ACCELER8___ 

Brief summary of what you will address the Commission on: 

______Report of the impact of funding for the ACCELER8 program for existing 

businesses within the city. Also provide brief update on other Lucas Center 

programming, impact, and upcoming opportunities to grow 

entrepreneurship.____________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________ 

        _Ande Noktes______ 

        Name 

 

        

        

        

Meeting Date:  ___2/7/2024    

 



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  

WORK SESSION 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2024 AT 5:30 P.M. 

1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 
& 

STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

 
PRESENT:  Commissioner Kendra Rolle, Commissioner Lance Sabbe and Commissioner Gwen  
                       Atkinson-Williams       
ABSENT:     Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson and Mayor Pro Tem Felicia Harris  
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Commissioner Rolle 
 
DISCUSSION 
1. Millicent Cross, Founder Totally Free, Inc. to update commission about her organization. 
 
    Mrs. Cross gave a presentation on the services her organization “Totally Free, Inc.” provides; and  
    stated she would like to partner with the City. 
     
    Following questions and responses; Commissioner Rolle thanked Mrs. Cross for the presentation. 
     
   
 

    WORK SESSION ADJOURNED – session adjourned at 5:54 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2024 

 AT 6:00 P.M.  
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:  Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro Tem Felicia Harris, Commissioner  
                       Kendra Rolle, Commissioner Lance Sabbe, and Commissioner Gwen Atkinson- 
                       Williams                  
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 6:13 p.m. 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Harris 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison by all in attendance. 
ADDENDUM(S) TO AGENDA: 

** 
Commissioner Atkinson-Williams made a motion to defer item number six (6) “Consider Approval 
of 3210 Glynn Avenue Site Plan Approval” under items to consider for approval until February 7, 
2024 commission meeting; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 

** 
Commissioner Atkinson-Williams made a motion to add as item number two~a (2a) under 
Recognition(s) Presentation(s), & Award(s) ~ “Presentation of Retirement plaques to Vicki “Lynne” 
Velie, Assistance Finance Director and Kathy Mills, Finance Director”; seconded by Commissioner 
Sabbe. Motion passed unanimously.  

** 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1.  Adoption of January 17, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda.  
     Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to approve the above-referenced agenda with the  
     aforementioned addendums; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

1) David Bowers addressed the commission regarding his position and that of the Planning and 
Appeals Commission regarding the site plan for 3210 Glynn Avenue. He asked the 
commission to ratify a chairperson for the Planning and Appeals Commission. He also 
addressed commission regarding amendments to Planning and Appeals Commission 
ordinance. 

RECOGNITION(S), PRESENTATION(S), & AWARD(S) 
2.   Proclamation Presentation Recognizing Amendments to Equal Rights Act.  
      Above-referenced proclamation was presented to Carla Arbray and was accepted with gratitude. 
2a  Presentation of Retirement Plaques to :  Vicki “Lynne Velie, Assistance Finance Director and  
      Kathy Mills, Finance Director.  
      Plaques presented to Vicki “Lynne Velie, Assistance Finance Director and Kathy Mills, Finance  
      Director was accepted with gratitude. 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


3 
 

 
** 

Mayor Johnson recognized County Commissioner David Sweat in the audience. 
** 

APPOINTMENT(S) 
3.   Downtown Development Authority – One Appointment 
      Commissioner Atkinson-Williams made a motion to appoint Shemeka Sorrels to the above- 
      referenced authority; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris. Motion passed unanimously. 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
4.   Consider Approval of January 3, 2024 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any  
       necessary changes.)  (N. Atkinson)  
      Commissioner Rolle made a motion to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by  
      Commissioner Sabbe. Motion passed unanimously. 
5.   Consider Approval of Alcohol License Renewal for Bottle Time Liquor. (A. Brown) 
      Commissioner Rolle made a motion to approve the renewal of the alcohol license for Bottle  
      Time Liquor; seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams. Motion passed by a vote of 4 to 0;  
      with Mayor Johnson abstaining. 
6.   Consider Approval of 3210 Glynn Avenue Site Plan Approval. (J. Hunter)   

The above-referenced item was deferred until February 7, 2024 Commission meeting. 
7.   Consider Approval of Resolution Number 2024-01 ~ Submission of to Georgia Department of  
      Community Affairs for a Community Housing Investment Program (CHIP) Grant of $1,500,000.    
      (J. Hunter)  
      Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the above-referenced resolution; seconded by  
      Commissioner Rolle. Motion passed unanimously.  
8.   Consider Approval of Resolution 2024-02 ~ Adoption of Housing and Neighborhood  
      Revitalization Program Polices. (J. Hunter) 
      Commissioner Rolle made a motion to approve the above-referenced resolution; seconded by  
      Commissioner Sabbe. Motion passed unanimously.  
9.   Consider Appointment of Planning and Appeals Commission Chairperson. (J. Hunter) 
      Commissioner Rolle made a motion to defer appointment to the above-referenced commission       
      until February 7, 2024 commission meeting; seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams.  
      Motion passed by a vote of 4 to 1; with Mayor Pro Tem Harris opposing. 
10. Consider Approval Police Department Surplus Vehicles. (K. Jones) 
      Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the sale of the surplus vehicles; seconded by  
      Mayor Pro Tem Harris. Motion passed unanimously. 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
11. Discussion ~ Amendment to Planning and Appeals Commission Ordinance. (J. Hunter) 

~Discussion only ~  
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to hold an executive session to discuss litigation; seconded by 
Commissioner Atkinson-Williams. Motion passed unanimously. 
RECONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the insurance release with Gainsco Auto Insurance 
in the amount of $8,248.88; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Rolle made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris. Motion passed 
unanimously. 



4 
 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 8:14 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 



Alcohol License Renewals 02.07.2024 
Name of Business Business Owner/Manager Business Address Permit Type 

Cool on Cool Owner: Enzo Centofan� 1706-A Second St., 
Brunswick, GA 

Packaged sales of 
beer, wine, and 
liquor 

 



Page | 1 

SUBJECT: 90% Site Plan Approval | 3210 Glynn Avenue |  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             January 17, 2024 

PURPOSE: See attached Staff Report 

HISTORY: 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  N/A 

OPTIONS: 

- Approve Site Plan as submitted.

- Approve Site Plan with conditions.

- Do not approve Site Plan.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

- Approve Site Plan

DEPARTMENT: PDC 

Prepared by: John Hunter, Director 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

________________________________ ________________________ 

City Manager  Date     

1/9/24



1 
 

Site Plan Review 
 

(3210 Glynn Avenue) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

John Hunter 
Director 

Planning, Development, & Codes 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brunswick City Commission 
January 3, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Requested Land Use Approvals 
Maritime Homes, LLC, owner, has submitted a site plan for review by the Planning and Appeals 
Commission.  This review and recommendation was required by the City Commission as a part 
of their approval of the request to rezone the property to PD-G in 2022. This site plan covers the 
portion of the development at 3210 Glynn Avenue. 
 

 
 
Proposed Development 
Maritime Homes, LLC proposes the construction of 54 cottages, 36 condominium units, and 3 
commercial buildings, and associated parking and infrastructure on 15.28 acres. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Staff Analysis 
When reviewing a site plan prior to having a complete Permit Package staff reviews key items 
for consistency with city ordinances and other regulatory requirements. 
Task 1:  Review for consistency with PD Text 
1)  Do the proposed uses follow the PD Text?  Yes 
2)  Does the site plan follow the development requirements established by the PD Text? 
 - Residential follows our standard setback, heights, density used in GR citywide. 
   15 ft front/5 side/10 rear. 
 -Commercial setback follow those outlined in GADF. 
  -Density for Cottages is based on Single Family GR = 9 units an acre 
   -54 units shown on 6 acres = 9 units per acre units per 
  -Density for Multi-Family (condos)is based on Multi-Family GR = 20 units per acre 
  -36 units shown on 5.97 acres = 6 units per acre 
This does represent an increase of 27 residential units when compared to the Concept Plan.  
However, as shown above it meets the density standards for each location and unit type as 
outlined in the PD text.  The PD density is also identical to the standards in the Brunswick 
General Residential Zoning currently. 
  
3)Water/Sewer:  Water Sewer Plan connects as discussed in PD Text:  Yes 

Task 2:  Review for consistency with Concept Plan 
The site plan shows a natural evolution from Concept Plan to a reality that reflects development 
constraints.  The Commercial portion is consistent with the Concept Plan.  However, what was 
envisioned as Townhouses in the Concept Plan has changed to a “cottage” style development, 
with 54 single-family units replacing the Townhouses and Multi-Family (Condos) south of 
Riverside/Norman St.  This reflects the impact of a significant effort to work within the natural 
setting and preserve existing tree canopy.  As Single-Family and Multi-Family are allowed uses 
within the PD Text, this does not constitute a deviation from the PD and has a beneficial impact 
on the development as it reduces the potential density. 
  
Task 3:  Review for General Regulations and Ordinances 
Generally involves a cursory review by Planning, Engineering, Public Works, and the Fire 
Marshal. 
1) Multi-Family Parking – With the adoption of the new Zoning Ordinance, Multi-Family 
development of 2-bedroom units with more than 25 units requires 1.75 spaces per unit.  63 
required for units; 73 are provided. 
2) Single -Family Parking – 108 Spaces required (2 per unit); 129 provided. 
3) Commercial Parking – The commercial portion anticipates 17,000 square feet of office space 
and 5,000 square feet of restaurant space.  Our ordinance requires 1 space per 300 GSF of Office 
use (57 spaces) and 1 space per 100 GSF of restaurant use including outdoor seating (50 spaces).  
116 spaces are provided, exceeding the amount required. 
 
4) Buffers – No buffer required between adjacent residential or adjacent commercial properties. 
 



4 
 

5) Flood Damage Prevention  
  - LiMWA line --  This is the Limit of Moderate Wave Action.  Any development on the 
   east (seaward) side of this line must comply with V-zone regulations.  This is  
   discussed in Section 11-55 of the ordinance, and is reflected on the site plan. The  
   impacts on building design and site conditions will be reviewed as a part of the  
   building permit approval process. 

-Freeboard requirement – The ordinance includes a one-foot freeboard  
  requirement.  Any of the development in the AE-10 zone on the landward side of  
  the LiMWA line must have a FFE of 11.0 or higher.  This requirement will be  
  confirmed during the building permit approval process. 
-Storm Water – Site plan reflects consideration of collecting storm water from 
impervious surfaces and detaining on site.  Collection calculations, any required permits, 
etc. will be reviewed, verified and approved by the City Engineer prior to issuance of a 
building permit.  Depth of detention may require fencing.   
  
6) Sanitation: Dumpster/Compactor locations provided. ADDED AT CONDO 
LOCATION IN 12/3 REVISIONS. 
 
7) Fire Access:  Fire Marshal has reviewed and believes the current plan provides  
 adequate access for equipment, other than the "tree split" at the northern. 
Suggested relocating planned planted tree, widening the northern arm and converting the  
adjacent parking to a Fire Access Lane. ADDRESSED IN 12/3 REVISIONS 
 
8) US 17 ROW Access: Final requirements will be permitted via GDOT.  Traffic study  
has been provided.  Sightlines from entrances, neighboring commercial and residential  
 access points need to be considered in landscape plan. 
 
9) Norman Street/Riverside Dr ROW Access:  The developer has suggested that a 
roundabout be installed to address access and traffic control.  City Engineering and 
Public Works has no issue with this solution. REMOVED FROM PLAN IN 12/3 
REVISION. 
  
7) Water/Sewer Connectivity: Detail provided within the plan. 
 
 Task 4:  Review for consistency with the US 17 Overlay District/Glynn Avenue Design 
Framework 

  The project falls within the US 17 Overlay and is subject to the Glynn Avenue Design 
  Framework.  While this has minimal impact upon uses, it will guide the overall character 
  and design of the development. Within the Overlay, PD-G is considered a Special 
  District.  To establish the Special District General, a proposed development must contain 
  an area of not less than three acres, have direct access to at least one street, and conform  
  with the Guiding Principles and Design Principles of the US 17 Overlay District as stated 
  in Section 1.3.1 and 1.3.2 of the Glynn Avenue Design Framework. 
   
 



5 
 

Guiding Principles state: 
1. Glynn Avenue should reflect vernacular architecture appropriate to coastal 

   Georgia. – Architectural review was not required by the PD-G approval, only the 
   site plan.  Architectural review will be conducted by staff prior to issuance of the  
   Building Permits. 

2. Our marshes, waterways, and scenic vistas are natural resources that should be  
   available and accessible to all. –Principle is met by maintaining the 45’ marsh  
   setback and includes an access path within the setback. 

3. Responsible development should minimize impact to the sensitive natural  
   environment, particularly along the eastern edge of Glynn Avenue. –Principle is  
   met by maintaining the 45’ marsh setback. 

4. Access to properties along Glynn Avenue should be safely and easily accessible  
for pedestrians and cyclists, as well as motorists. – Internal connectivity via 
sidewalks with connectivity to exterior sidewalks meet this principle. 

5. Individual development should respect and contribute positively to the public 
realm. – There are no proposed public assets within the development, however 
maintaining the 45’ marsh setback and introduction of a marsh front trail 
connecting Riverside/Norman with Glynn Avenue meets this principle.  Addressing 
traffic concerns and safety with a roundabout also contributes to this principle. 

6. Glynn Avenue should evolve into an activity center that is complimentary to, but not  
  competitive with, downtown Brunswick. 

7. Investment in the public realm should guide and enhance private sector investment. 
The Design Principles state: 

1. Public Waterfront + Public Space: The marsh and waterfront are public resources and 
should not be privatized for the enjoyment of only a few. Maintaining public access along the 
marsh and waterfront is a high priority.  Public access may be achieved through a roadway along 
the waterfront which continues the design elements of Main Street - on-street parking, generous 
sidewalks, street trees, etc., or though a waterfront park or pedestrian promenade along the 
marsh. 
 -Provisions for sidewalks, street trees, and the preservation of the 45’ marsh setback  
  meet this principle.  

2. Pedestrian-orientation: The current condition of Glynn Avenue does not lend itself to the  
creation of a ‘Main Street.’ However, this does not mean that the desire to create walkable, 
human scaled places should be abandoned. These regulations set forth a development strategy to 
capture passing vehicles while also fostering a ‘Main Street’ character on streets parallel to 
Glynn Avenue. 
 - Walkability is provided through the connectivity of internal sidewalks and the  
  connection to US 17 sidewalks.  There are no parallel public streets, however the  
  alignment of buildings, parking, and travel lanes does mimic a traditional block format. 
   



6 
 

3. Mixed-Use Environment: The creation of a mixed use environment provides an ideal 
transition from more highway-oriented scale along US 17 to more neighborhood-compatible 
scale, while accommodating a variety of uses, including commercial, office, institutional, and 
residential. 
 - The development involves commercial and 2 residential types within easy walking 
distance on a single site. 

4. Blocks + Streets: Building an interconnected network of compact blocks is critical to 
ensure a walkable area that fosters diverse uses and building types. This block pattern can still 
accommodate large-scale retailers, but does so in a way that maintains the importance of human-
scaled development.  

Streets should generally include on-street parking, street trees, sidewalks, and pedestrian 
amenities such as benches, street lights, trash facilities, etc. Highly connected streets are 
important to provide access without requiring traffic to re-enter Glynn Avenue to reach nearby 
destinations.  

-As a single development and not a development of many individual parcels, the site plan 
does mimic a linear block pattern as much as practicable.  The addition of sidewalks, street trees 
and lighting create a very similar pattern to the function of traditional city blocks. 

5. Quality Design: The importance of urban form cannot be overstated. To foster community 
character and create a walkable, vibrant community, the elements of the built environment are 
more critical than the use. Buildings should be human-scaled, have a primary entrance facing the 
public realm, and be set close to the street to foster a pedestrian environment. 

-The design mimics a traditional block form even though it is not installing public roads.  
Buildings entrances face the internal circulation and are set close to street fronts and are 
connected via a network of sidewalks.   

6. Sense of Place: The Glynn Avenue corridor is intended to develop as a high quality, 
mixed-use, pedestrian oriented environment.  This area should develop as a complement to, not 
in competition with, downtown Brunswick.  Civic buildings are places of community focus and 
center. They should be located in places of prominence, such as facing a square, town green, or 
other central public space.  
 
Under the GADF, a PD is considered a “Special District”, and the PD Text and Concept plan as 
adopted dictate the development parameters such as setbacks, building size and forms, heights, 
road and parking forms and locations, etc.  Because of this, most of  the applicable portions of the 
GADF are related to aesthetics. 
  
1) Existing Trees:  534 are inventoried on the site plan.  329 will be preserved and 205 removed.  
Of the 534 trees, 113 are considered “Specimen Trees” as defined in the GADF.  98 Specimen 
Trees will be preserved with 15 Specimen Trees noted for removal and replacement.  The tree 
plan calls for the planting of 84 new trees to satisfy replacement tree, street tree, and parking 
island tree requirements.   An additional note about the trees designated for removal – 86 are of 
the same species that qualify for “Specimen Tree” status (Live Oaks, Hackberry or Willow 
Oaks).  Non-specimen species that will be removed includes 97 Palm Trees, 18 pines, 1 pecan, 
and 1 cedar.  Total loss of specimen species trees on the site will be 2. 



7 
 

   
2) Landscaping 
  - Landscaping will need to feature native vegetation as outlined in GADF and plans will  
  need to be submitted for permitting. 
 - Landscape plan will need to detail screening of dumpsters and any on-ground  
   mechanical equipment 
  - Lighting, and signage are referenced that they will meet Sec. 23-23-7: Glynn Avenue   
  Design Framework and will be verified during the building permit review process. 
 
3) 45’ Marsh Buffer: Is reflected in the plan.  Only amenity provided within  
  the setback is a pedestrian path.  This meets the requirements of the GADF. 
 
4) Sidewalks:  Sidewalks provide connectivity throughout the site and connect to the  
  main sidewalks along US 17. 
 
5) Bike racks will be required at each commercial and multi-family building. 
 
6) Lot Coverage:  The GADF limits lot coverage to 80%.  Lot coverage is 32%. 
  - Commercial Lot coverage is 50.6% 
  - Single Family Lot Coverage is 37.5% 
  - Multi-Family Lot Coverage is 16.08% 
 
7) Utilities: All utilities will be underground meeting the requirements of the GADF. 

 
8) Access: Access to US 17 is granted via a permitting and design review process controlled by 
GDOT.  A traffic study has been submitted to the City, and any improvements or signalization 
will be determined by GDOT.  Access to Norman St/Riverside Drive does require a City ROW 
review.  City Engineering has reviewed the proposed roundabout and has no issue with the 
proposed access solution. PROPOSED ROUNDABOUT REMOVED IN 12/3 REVISION 
 
9) Shared Parking From Phase I:  In the 90% Site Plan Approval for Phase I, the City 
Commission accepted the recommendation from Staff that Shared Parking be allowed between 
Phase I and Phase II.  This would allow Phase I to meet parking requirements under the zoning 
requirements that existed at that time.  On September 6, 2023 the City Commission passed a 
revised Zoning Ordinance at the recommendation of the Staff and the PAC that had been in 
development for 3 years.  This included a revision to the parking requirements for Multi-Family 
Developments, creating a scale based on unit type.  For developments with 2 bedroom units, the 
amount of required parking was reduced from 2 spaces per unit to 1.75.  As Phase I has not been 
issued a Building Permit, this means that the required parking for Phase I of the PD was reduced 
from 408 spaces to 357. Phase I called for 311 spaces.  This reduced the needed shared parking 
spaces to 46. 
Since the approval of the Phase I site plan, the developer has purchased 800 Marshview Drive, 
which is to the east of Phase I.  Their plan for the site includes an additional 24 2-bedroom 
apartments and additional parking. In total, between the two locations 402 parking spaces are 
provided.  Under the parking standards, 399 spaces are required to satisfy the total 228 



8 
 

apartments.  While 800 Marshview Drive is not a part of the PD-G, under the GADF shared 
parking between parcels and uses is encouraged.  The proposed parking plan considers this. The 
parking requirements are now met for Phase I, and no shared parking will need to be considered 
in Phase II and all parking requirements have been satisfied. 
 

PAC Recommendation  
The PAC reviewed the 90% plan at their December 13, 2023 meeting.  The PAC approved a  
motion to recommend denial of the site plan, believing that the plan was not compliant with 
Section 23-16-2 (e)(3) which states ‘Traffic circulation shall not route commercial or office 
traffic through residential areas within or adjacent to the PD”; and that the plan did not seem 
“cohesive” and more information was needed to make a comfortable recommendation.  That was 
seconded and approved 4-1 (Mr. Sabbe against). 
 

Staff Recommendation  
As outlined in the report, staff believes that the 90% site plan is compliant with the ordinances of 
the city and the regulations outlined within the PD-G approved previously by the City 
Commission.  In response to the concerns of the PAC, staff believes that the concern about 
Section 23-16-2 (e)(3) is unfounded.  The PD standards outline multiple types of Planned 
Developments – Residential Only PD’s; Mixed Use PD’s, and Non-Residential PD’s.  The stated 
section of code should only apply to Non-Residential PD’s.  Mixed-Use PD’s, or any allowed 
Mixed-Use Zoning classification are inherently mixes of commercial and residential uses – many 
times within the same buildings.  Within mixed-use areas traffic patterns, parking, and other 
infrastructure is intentionally shared.  Our own Glynn Avenue Design Standards reinforce this 
when stating “3. Mixed-Use Environment: The creation of a mixed use environment provides an 
ideal transition from more highway-oriented scale along US 17 to more neighborhood-
compatible scale, while accommodating a variety of uses, including commercial, office, 
institutional, and residential.” 

The intent of this review process was to show how a Planned Development went from Concept 
Plan to a Site Plan, and provide the City Commission a firm understanding of how the 
ordinances and requirements of the City influenced the final design. 

Staff recommends the approval of the 90% site plan by the City Commission with a condition.  
The Planning, Development and Codes Department, and the City Engineer both believe that the 
roundabout that was initially proposed on the Riverside Dr./Norman St. side of the project is a 
sound solution for traffic control, and recommend that the City Commission ask the developer 
for it to be added back to the plan as originally proposed.     



 



 



 



 



1/30/2024

































Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Public Works Surplus Vehicle 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             _____02/07/2024___ 

 

PURPOSE:  To declare the listed items surplus. This will be done so that the vehicles may be disposed of through Public 
Auction on GovDeals.com. 

HISTORY:  The City of Brunswick periodically has surplus vehicles and equipment which are no longer used or may be too 
costly to repair. Those items are then brought to the City of Brunswick Commission to be declared surplus and are made 
available for sale to the public.  The items listed below have been replaced, or scheduled to be replaced, and are no longer 
needed.  The items below are all located in Public Works. 

FACTS AND ISSUES:  The items below are to be declared surplus.   

2024 Surplus List 2024-02 

                  

Stock# Make Model Year Color VIN# Vehicle Info Miles / 
Hours 

Information 

61301 Chevrolet Express 
Van 

2006 White 1GAHG39U861257019 6 Cyl LQ4 Engine 
4X2: Runs When 
Parked- Bad Paint 

125130 Tag# 
GV29058 

495012 Ford F150 1995 White 1FTDF15Y8SNA92694       6 Cyl 4.9L 4X2: Starts 
& Runs 

194501   



Page | 2 
 

432014 Ford F150 2000 White 1FTZX1729YNC23457 4X2 4.2L V-6                      
Bad Transmission-
Engine runs rough 

291036 Tag# 
GV51368 

49304 Ford F250 2007 White 1FTNF20537EB31481 8 Cyl 5.4L 4X2: 
Engine Runs Rough 

174221 Tag# 
GV28749 

49301 Ford F250 1999 White 1FTNF20L7XEE19079 4X2 5.4L V-8 Bad 
Brake Booster.  
Starts and runs. 

218034 Tag# 
GV51488 

T-7 BFD Ford Expedition 
Eddie 
Bauer 

2005 White 1FMPU17505LA46746 8 Cyl 5.4L 4X2: 
Engine doesn’t run 

255115 Tag# 
GV28976 

T-8 BFD Chevrolet C1500   
Silverado 

2001 Red 1GCEC14V71Z303685 1500 Series 8 Cyl -
4.8 L 4X2: Engine 
doesn’t run 

Unreadable Tag# GV 
28748 

154 
BFD 

Ford Crown 
Victoria 

2008 White 2FAFP71V48X140399 4.6L V-8, Police 
Interceptor, Engine 
doesn’t run 

Unreadable Tag# 
GV209049 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

Items approved for surplus will be auctioned off to the highest bidder on GovDeals.com.  All proceeds will go to the General 
Fund. 

 

OPTIONS: 

Option 1:  Approve the vehicles and equipment as surplus to be sold. 



Page | 3 
 

Option 2:  Keep the items or a portion of the items. 

Option 3:  Do nothing at this time. 

 

 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

The Public Works Department recommends Option 1. 

 

DEPARTMENT: 

 

Prepared by: Assistant Public Works Director Rick Charnock 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                     

        

1/30/2024



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: HOWARD COFFIN PARK ATHLETIC FIELD IMPROVEMENTS 

  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 7, 2024 

PURPOSE: 

Authorization for the City of Brunswick to move forward with lighting and field improvements 
on the athletic fields at Howard Coffin Park 

HISTORY: 

Howard Coffin Park is the City’s largest park and the home of the City’s recreation department.  
There are four baseball/softball fields and a large football/soccer field among the park’s 
amenities.  These fields are used by the recreation department, local sports teams, and other 
organizations such as Coastal Outreach Soccer. 

The baseball fields consist of dirt infield areas and grassed outfield areas.  The fields are in very 
poor condition due to their age and lack of proper maintenance.  The infield areas are not graded 
properly and do not drain well following rainfall events.  The outfield areas are infested with 
weeds and other invasive plants which makes for a poor playing surface. 

The soccer fields were more recently constructed, but the soil conditions are very poor in that 
area of the park.  Additionally, proper field turf was never installed when the fields were 
constructed.  The current playing surface contains many weeds and other unwanted grasses.  The 
poor soil conditions, improper drainage and poor turf results in a field that is nearly unplayable. 

The lighting system at the fields will be improved as part of the grant project as well.  The 
baseball/softball fields all have existing lighting, but the lights are in very poor condition.  Many 
of the lights have been blown down in recent tropical storm events.  The current field lighting 
system does not provide adequate lighting for playing games after dark.  The soccer/football 
field does not have lights as there were none installed when the fields were constructed.  The 
existing lighting as the swimming pool area has also been severely damaged due to tropical 
storms and general exposure to the weather.  

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

The City has been awarded a grant from the Governor’s Office of  Health and Safety for 
improvements throughout Howard Coffin Park.  The grant amount is $2.1 Million and the City is 



Page | 2 
 

matching $550,000 from ARPA funding, resulting in a total project budget of $2.65 Million.  
The scope of the project includes field turf improvements, field lighting improvements, and other 
improvements throughout the park. 

The Public Works Department issued a Request for Proposals for pricing of the field 
improvements.  Two responses were received.  One of the responses included natural turf on the 
baseball fields as well as the soccer fields.  The second response from Tyler Athletic Fields 
included natural turf on the baseball fields along with synthetic surfacing on the soccer field. 

The scope of the field turf improvements includes regrading of all four baseball/softball fields.  
The infield areas will be graded for proper drainage and reconstructed to provide a smooth 
playing surface.  The outfield areas will be regraded and planted with Bermuda sod. 

A synthetic playing surface will be installed at the football/soccer fields.  The field area will be 
regraded to provide positive drainage prior to the installation of the synthetic playing surface.  
The new surface will eliminate the poor drainage conditions in the area and allow for activities 
following rainfall events.  The synthetic surface will also eliminate the need for regular mowing 
and maintenance tasks. 

A request for proposals was also published for the installation of the new field lighting in the 
park.  The responses that were received were based on City ownership and maintenance, and 
exceeded the budget limits of the project.  Georgia Power has also provided a price for the 
installation of the field lighting.  The Georgia Power proposal includes an option for the City to 
own and maintain the lights as well as options for the City to lease the lighting.  Under the lease 
arrangement, the City would make monthly payments to cover the cost of the installation and 
operation of the lights, but Georgia Power would still be responsible for maintenance of the 
lights.   

The Georgia Power agreement for lighting includes 30 lights on eight concrete poles at Fields 1 
& 2, 48 lights on 12 poles at Fields 3 & 4, 60 lights on six poles at the football/soccer fields, and 
14 lights on seven poles around the pool area.  The agreement includes supply and installation of 
all poles and lighting equipment, control equipment, and power supply.  The City will be 
responsible for providing electric service lines to each location plus installation of new panel 
boxes and removal of any existing equipment which will be unused. 

These athletic field improvements will be a great asset to the park.  These improvements will 
help to make the playing fields at HCP into the premier athletic fields among the surrounding 
communities. 

 
 

 



Page | 3 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The contract price for the athletic field improvements is $820,000.  

The recommended Georgia Power agreement requires a deposit of $400,000 and a monthly cost 
of $9,612.48.  The $400,000 deposit would be paid from grant funding, and the monthly cost 
would be budgeted in the City’s general fund budget for utilities.  The estimated cost of the 
providing power service to the lighting locations is $75,000 and the cost is budgeted in the grant 
budget. 

The funding for the field improvements and lighting improvements will come from grant funds.  
The total project budget is $2.65 M, including the $550,000 local match.  A spreadsheet is 
attached to illustrate the grant funding for the project.   

 

OPTIONS: 

1. Approve the agreement with Tyler Athletic Fields for athletic field improvements in the 
amount of $820,000 and the agreement with GA Power for lighting improvements 
including a $400,000 down payment and monthly cost. 

2. Do not approve the agreement with Tyler Athletic Fields for athletic field improvements 
in the amount of $820,000 and the agreement with GA Power for lighting improvements 
including a $400,000 down payment and monthly cost. 

3. Take no action at this time. 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Approve the agreement with Tyler Athletic Fields for athletic field improvements in the 
amount of $820,000 and the agreement with GA Power for lighting improvements 
including a $400,000 down payment and monthly cost. 

 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering   

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, Director of Engineering and Public Works  

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 



Page | 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the agreement with Tyler Athletic Fields for athletic field improvements in the 
amount of $820,000 and the agreement with GA Power for lighting improvements 
including a $400,000 down payment and monthly cost. 

________________________________ 

City Manager          

_1/30/24______________ 

Date       



HOWARD COFFIN PARK IMPROVEMENT GRANT

Summary of Funding Sources & Uses  

FUNDING USES  $$ Amount 

820,000$           

400,000$           

Electrical Service & Connections 75,000$             

Dugout / Scoring Stand Roofs 39,000$             

Bleachers (soccer field) 35,400$             

Bleacher Shade Structures 435,400$           

Basketball Courts 232,650$           

Sidewalks / Bridge 120,860$           

Restroom Building 340,000$           

Netting Along Ditch 15,300$             

Synthetic surface at circuit training 42,202$             

Soccer Goals 14,700$             

Park Signage 22,200$             

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 2,592,712$       

CURRENT FUNDING SOURCES

Grant Funding - Howard Coffin Park 2,100,000$       
Local Match - ARPA funds 550,000$           

TOTAL CURRENT FUNDING 2,650,000$       

Project under (over) budget 57,288$             

Field Lighting Improvements - GA Power

Athletic Field Improvements



Howard Coffin Park 
Baseball/Softball Fields 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Text Box
Field 1

galberson
Text Box
Field 2

galberson
Text Box
Field 3

galberson
Text Box
Field 4

galberson
Text Box
All baseball/softball fields have existing irrigation systems.  



Howard Coffin Park 
Football/Soccer Fields 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Polygon

galberson
Text Box
Football/Soccer Field*no existing field lighting in place









                
 
 

 
 
 
January 22nd, 2024 
 
City of Brunswick 
Howard Coffin Park 
Brunswick, GA  
 
Thank you for being a valued Georgia Power customer. We look forward to servicing your lighting needs. The 
following proposal is for upgrading the sports lighting at Howard Coffin Park from HID to LED lighting.  
 
Georgia Power Company proposes the following: 
 
Softball Fields 1&2 
 
 Install (30) 700w Ephesus LumaSport8 Remote LED Sports Lighting Fixtures  
 Install (8) 60’ mounting height direct embedded concrete poles with cross arms. 

Install (1) Air Mesh Control System w/ Dynamic Scenes 
 

Softball Fields 3&4 
 
 Install (48) 700w Ephesus LumaSport8 Remote LED Sports Lighting Fixtures  
 Install (12) 60’ mounting height direct embedded concrete poles with cross arms. 

Install (1) Air Mesh Control System w/ Dynamic Scenes 
 

Football & Soccer Fields  
 
 Install (60) 700w Ephesus LumaSport8 Remote LED Sports Lighting Fixtures  
 Install (6) 60’ mounting height direct embedded concrete poles with cross arms. 

Install (1) Air Mesh Control System w/ Dynamic Scenes 
  
Pool 
 Install (14) 700w Ephesus LumaSport8 Remote LED Sports Lighting Fixtures  
 Install (7) 35’ mounting height steel poles mounted on existing bases with cross arms. 

Install (1) Air Mesh Control System w/ Dynamic Scenes 
 
  
Billing Options: 
 
Option 1: Monthly Service Agreement (No Upfront Required) 
 
The monthly bill amount for this lighting system will be $15,386.06 This monthly cost covers the installation and 
all ongoing maintenance of the lighting system. There will be no upfront charge associated with this installation. 
 
Option 2: Monthly Service Agreement with an upfront payment 
 
The monthly bill amount for this lighting system will be $9,612.48 and an upfront cost of $400,000.  This monthly 
cost covers the installation and all ongoing maintenance of the lighting system.  



 
Option 3: Straight Sale Price 
 
The Straight Sale price for this lighting system will be $1,128,075.00.  This cost covers the installation of the 
lighting system. There is no maintenance plan associated with this and the ownership of the poles and lights will 
be property of the City of Brunswick. 
 
 
Monthly Service Agreement:  

In the monthly service option, Georgia Power (GPC) retains ownership of the lighting system. As a result, any associated 
maintenance or replacement cost will be the responsibility of GPC. No additional cost will be incurred outside of the stated 
monthly cost. 

 

Exception and Exclusions: 

• Pole locations must be accessible by all 2-wheel drive equipment including concrete trucks, cranes, lifts, 
digger derrick trucks, etc.   

• Standard equipment, requiring access to each pole location, will be used for this installation. 
• Ground must be suitable for access of trucks, cranes, etc. under their own power. 
• Specialized equipment, i.e., long reach cranes, all-terrain vehicles, etc., requested by customer will be at 

additional charges. 
• Utilities not marked by Utility Protection Center are the responsibility of customer. 
• Overhead obstructions cleared by others, i.e., power lines and trees. 
•    Removal, damage, restoration, or replacement to driveways, culverts, sidewalks, curbs, sod, bushes, trees, 

rock or slag, landscaping, unmarked private utilities, etc. 
•     Proposal is based on utilizing a 125’ lift for final adjustments on aiming. If a larger lift is required, additional 

costs will be incurred. 
• Excavation of rock, trash, hazardous materials and/or fluid soil conditions  
• Any damage to site due to construction is not included. 
• Concrete cutting is not included in the cost. 
• Private locates not included 
• Customer agrees to have lights stored inside a locked facility while construction is being scheduled and 

underway. Containers for storage will be provided. 
 
***NOT included in this cost but are necessary for this job and would be a separate quote from customer’s desired 
electrician.  

• Removal of existing electrical services mounted to existing poles. 
• New services with under ground feeds from GPC Transformers are recommended. 
• Replacement of existing electrical panels and breakers 
• There is no electrical service for the Football/Soccer fields, and these will need new services. 

 
Next Steps: 
 
1. City of Brunswick Review and Approval 

2. Contract Signing 

3. Coordinate material delivery and construction schedule 

 
Georgia Power is built on integrity and delivering on our promises. We hope to continue building our relationship 
with the City of Brunswick years into the future! Please inform us if you have any questions about the proposed 



lighting system. If you would like to move forward, I will prepare the appropriate agreements for your review and 
signage. This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date of this letter.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jennifer F. Poppell 
Georgia Power Company 
912-321-3129 



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF A STREET SWEEPER 

  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 7, 2024 

PURPOSE: 

Authorization for the City of Brunswick to purchase a Street Sweeper from Tymco in the amount 
of $361,465 

HISTORY: 

The Public Works Department utilizes street sweepers in the daily maintenance of city streets 
and roadways.  The city currently has two sweepers.  Both of the current sweepers are Tymco 
sweepers—the older one is approximately 12 years old, and the newer one is five years old.  
Both machines run daily when operators are available.  A commercial driver’s license is required 
to operate both machines. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

The Public Works Department requested pricing from Tymco for a new sweeper.  Tymco quoted 
a price of $361,465 for a new sweeper.  The quoted price is the state contract pricing for this 
equipment.  The new machine is the same capacity as the current machines but does not require a 
commercial driver’s license to operate.  The price also includes a one-year / 1,000-hour 
manufacturer’s warranty.  The machine is available for delivery in 8-10 months. 

 
BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The state contract price for the machine is $361,465.  The sweeper will be financed through 
Tymco’s financing office.  Following a $60,000 down payment, the remaining cost will be 
financed for a four-year term at a rate of 4.75%.  Annual payments will be approximately 
$85,000.  The funding for the sweeper will be budgeted in the annual Stormwater Utility budget. 

 

 

 



Page | 2 
 

OPTIONS: 

1. Approve the purchase of the street sweeper from Tymco for $361,465 

2. Do not approve the purchase of the street sweeper from Tymco for $361,465 

3. Take no action at this time. 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Approve the purchase of the street sweeper from Tymco for $361,465 

 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering   

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, Director of Engineering and Public Works  

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the purchase of the street sweeper from Tymco for $361,465 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                              Date                   
      

1/30/2024



Cooperative Purchasing

Compliant, Competitive, 
and Convenient 
Contracts for government, education, and nonprofits

Accomplish More
As a leader in cooperative purchasing, 
we are passionate about helping public 
agencies fulfill their public service 
missions.

We are building stronger relationships 
with agencies and suppliers to develop 
practical solutions together.

Learn how we can serve you. For 
contract documents 
and participating agency 
information, visit:
sourcewell-mn.gov
877-585-9706

Supplier related questions:
Kaye Morgan
800-258-9626
kaye.morgan@tymco.com

Bryan J. Young
800-258-9626
bryan.young@tymco.com

Compliant
- Trusted process satisfies bid requirements
- Government agency that works like you
- Achievement of Excellence in Procurement recipient

Competitive
- Buying power of 50,000 participating agencies

Convenient
- Hundreds of trusted brands under contract
- Full catalog of options for a complete solution
- Easy, no-cost registration to use

Contract #122017-TYM



Page 1 of 2 Brunswick GA Wstebuilt 600 01-10-2024 REVISED Sourcewell.xlsx

Section / Type Qty Model 600® Sweeper and Cab/Chassis Equipment Sourcewell Price Sourcewell Ext
600000 1 Model 600® Sweeper with Standard Equipment (Base Price) $191,653.00 $191,653.00

Sourcewell Base Price Discount (Approx 5%) -$9,583.00 -$9,583.00
Model 600® Sweeper Base Price $182,070.00 $182,070.00

1
600053 1 Auxiliary Hydraulic System $1,140.00 $1,140.00

2
600022 1 Gutter Broom Tilt Adjuster: Right $875.00 $875.00
600022 1 Gutter Broom Tilt Adjuster: Left $875.00 $875.00

3

600004 1 A.O.D. (Air Operated Diaphragm) Water Pump with Wash Down Hose 
& Gun (Exchange) $2,075.00 $2,075.00

600045 1 High Output Water System $855.00 $855.00
4

600036 1 Abrasion Protection Package $1,275.00 $1,275.00
600019 1 Hopper Load Indicators $475.00 $475.00

Unpublished 1 Hopper Suction Inlet Wear Flange with Liner $1,500.00 $1,500.00
600043 1 Sweeper Deluge System $1,045.00 $1,045.00

TYMCO Dealer Contact: Ryan Williams
TYMCO Dealer Contact E-Mail: rwilliams@wastebuilt.com

Quote Date: 1/10/24
Quote Validity: 30 Days

TYMCO Dealer: Wastebuilt
Quoted By: Craig Cook

Sourcewell Quote Form v6.0 - Sourcewell Contract #122017-TYM
Feb. 20, 2023 - Feb. 20, 2024

Customer Contact Name: Eddie Ross

Customer / Sourcewell Member: City of Brunswick, GA
Sourcewell Member #: 2128

MODEL 600® SWEEPER STANDARD EQUIPMENT
Auxiliary Engine: John Deere diesel turbocharged 4045T Final Tier 4; 4 cylinder; 4.5 L (275 CID); 99 HP @ 2200 RPM; Torque 315 ft. lb. @ 1600 RPM; fuel/water separator, fuel filter; Donaldson 
PowerCore ® air filter with scavenged pre-filter; Remote oil filter; 3.8 useable gallon Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) tank. Includes John Deere Standard Warranty coverage 2 Years / 2000 Hours and 
Amber Beacon Light - LED: SAE Class 1/California Title 13 compliant with protective limb guard.

Auxiliary Engine In-Cab Air Filter Restriction Indicator with Gauge: A filter restriction gauge included on the in-cab BlueLogic display with an audio and visual high restriction indicator.

Purchasing Details: Issue Purchase Orders to TYMCO, Inc., ATTN: Kaye Morgan
(kaye.morgan@tymco.com | 254-799-5546). 

Quote is Good for 30 Days (Unless Otherwise Noted Above) | Pricing is Quoted in US Dollars (USD)  | Payment Terms: Net 30 Days

GUTTER BROOM OPTIONS:

Reverse Pick-Up Head System: Assists in backing up with Pick-Up Head down

Auxiliary Engine Protection System: Engine ECU to provide automatic engine monitoring with derate or shutdown when engine problem is detected such as high coolant temperature or low oil 
pressure.
Auxiliary Fuse Panel: A 12V DC fused power source panel for any needed additional electrical components or accessories, i.e. radios, warning lights, controls, etc.
Back-Up Alarm: ECCO Model 510; SAE Type C 97dB

BlueLogic® Control System: Multiplexed electrical system includes hardware and TYMCO designed software that integrates the in-cab controls to the auxiliary engine and all sweeper functions; as 
well as provides intelligent safety features. The BlueLogic Control System provides sweeper and auxiliary engine data to the  operator through the touchscreen display and the multiplexed switch 
pack. The display is pedestal mounted for improved visibility and includes hour meters (Trip and Total) for the auxiliary engine, gutter brooms, pick-up head, blower, water pump, and BAH broom 
if applicable; sweeper odometer (records curb miles swept and sweeping hours), service reminders, custom reminders, overspeed warning, low water audible alarm, dust control system 
winterization guide and On-Board Diagnostics (OBD) for the auxiliary engine and sweeper.

Duo Skids: Warranted for 2 Years / 2000 hours prorated
Dust Control System: 220 gallon capacity polyethylene water tank (Extra Water capacities available); 5 gpm electric diaphragm type pump; low water audible alarm and message on BlueLogic 
display; external water level indicator; spray nozzles around pick-up head, gutter broom(s) and inside hopper. Peterbilt 156”, Autocar 152” Diesel and Autocar 171” CNG chassis REQUIRES Extra 
Water Capacity (Refer to Dust Control Options Section).
Gutter Brooms, Twin; LED Floodlights and Parabolic Mirrors: Left and right side mounted 43" diameter wire filled digger type; adjustable LED floodlight for each gutter broom; 10.5" parabolic 
mirrors. Parabolic Mirrors N/A with Cabover Chassis.

Hydraulic System Protection: Hydraulic filter restriction indicator mounted in filter manifold; sight level gauge mounted on tank. BlueLogic control system continually monitors oil temperature.

LED Alternating Warning Light Set: Rear mounted oval lights (2).

Pressure Bleeder: Air pressure is deflected out, allowing additional suction across the front of  pick-up head.

High Capacity Dust Separator

LED Stop/Turn/Tail/Clearance Lights

Rear Mounted LED Floodlights (2)
Rear View Camera System: 3rd Eye®, heavy duty rear infrared camera with 7” color monitor mounted in cab

Rubber Lined Blower: Warranty: 1 year / 1,000 hours prorated
Water Fill Hose & Rack: Flexible 20 foot long water tank fill hose with 2-1/2 inch hydrant  coupling with rack mount.  System incorporates air gap.
Work Platform: Easily accessible work platform located between truck cab and sweeper. Standard equipment  with conventional chassis with 165” WB and horizontal exhaust. Not available with 
Extra Water Capacity or Chassis Vertical Exhaust.
Sweeper Warranty: 1 Year / 1000 Hours. Contact factory for details.

AUXILIARY ENGINE | HYDRAULIC OPTIONS:

DUST CONTROL SYSTEM OPTIONS:

HOPPER OPTIONS:



Page 2 of 2 Brunswick GA Wstebuilt 600 01-10-2024 REVISED Sourcewell.xlsx

Section / Type Qty Model 600® Sweeper and Cab/Chassis Equipment Sourcewell Price Sourcewell Ext
5

600079 1 Auto Sweep Interrupt (ASI) $1,045.00 $1,045.00
601000 1 Broom Assist Pick-Up Head (Exchange) $5,265.00 $5,265.00
600063 1 Pick-Up Head Curtain Lifter $1,615.00 $1,615.00

Unpublished 1 Pick-Up Head Pressure Inlet Water Injection System $1,800.00 $1,800.00
Unpublished 1 Skid Bumper Extension Set (3”) $250.00 $250.00

6
7

600091 1 Stainless Steel Hopper (Exchange) $23,130.00 $23,130.00
Unpublished 1 Stainless Steel Bolt-On Blower Housing (Exchange) $1,500.00 $1,500.00

8
9

600008-B 1 Camera System - Standard Rear Camera and One Additional Camera $1,100.00 $1,100.00

Location: RH - Pick-Up Head
Unpublished 1 Storage Box with Work Platform $1,200.00 $1,200.00
Unpublished 1 Sweeper Paint: TYMCO Standard White $0.00 $0.00

10
Unpublished 1 Auxiliary Engine Remote Oil Sight Gauge $500.00 $500.00

Unpublished 1 Surcharge - Sweeper Base Unit $4,550.00 $4,550.00

11
600709 1 2023 Freightliner M2-106, 31,000 lb. GVW, 165" WB, Diesel (1-SPD) $99,675.00 $99,675.00

Unpublished 1 UPGRADE: 2025 Freightliner M2-106 26,000 lb. GVW, 165" WB $17,500.00 $17,500.00
12

Unpublished 1 Air Horn (Dual) $500.00 $500.00
Unpublished 1 Battery Disconnect Switch $450.00 $450.00
Unpublished 1 Fire Extinguisher $100.00 $100.00
Unpublished 1 Hazard Reflectors $100.00 $100.00
Unpublished 1 LED Alternating Warning Light Set: Front Grille $450.00 $450.00

600840 1 LED Amber Light Bar: Cab Mounted $1,500.00 $1,500.00
600823 1 LED Amber Traffic Directing Light: Rear Mounted $1,200.00 $1,200.00

Unpublished 2 Parabolic Mirror Head - 12" (Exchange) $75.00 $150.00
Unpublished 1 Truck Paint: Standard Factory White $0.00 $0.00

13
14
15

1 Freight / PDI / Inservice $5,700.00 $5,700.00

.

Total Price:
FOB:

Delivery ARO:
.

CHASSIS ADDITIONAL OPTIONS:

AIRPORT OPTIONS:
SWEEPER ADDITIONAL OPTIONS:

UNPUBLISHED | SPECIAL SWEEPER OPTIONS:

PICK-UP HEAD OPTIONS:

AUXILIARY HAND HOSE OPTIONS:

UNPUBLISHED | SPECIAL CHASSIS OPTIONS:

$361,465.00 
Brunswick, GA
300-360 Days

Purchasing Details: Issue Purchase Orders to TYMCO, Inc., ATTN: Kaye Morgan
(kaye.morgan@tymco.com | 254-799-5546). 

Quote is Good for 30 Days (Unless Otherwise Noted Above) | Pricing is Quoted in US Dollars (USD)  | Payment Terms: Net 30 Days

STAINLESS STEEL OPTIONS:

CAB | CHASSIS:

DEALER UNPUBLISHED OPTIONS:
TOTAL COST OF ACQUISITION COSTS



Municipal Lease / Purchase Quote

Quote Date January 10, 2024

Dealer Information
Dealer No.: Phone No.:
Name: Fax No.:
Address: State:
City: Zip Code:
Contact:

Lessee Information
Name: Phone No.:
Address: Fax No.:
City: State:
Contact: Zip Code:
Title:
Email:

Equipment Information
Quantity:
Model:
Chassis:

Lease / Purchase Information
361,465.00$   

 (State sales tax not included unless shown)

361,465.00$   
(60,000.00)$    
301,465.00$   

4 Year 5 Year 6 Year
301,465.00$   301,465.00$   301,465.00$   

4.75% 4.85% 4.95%
4                     5                     6                     

-$                -$                -$                

84,523.53$     69,342.35$     59,298.93$     

36,629.12$     45,246.75$     54,328.58$     
338,094.12$   346,711.75$   355,793.58$   Total Payments:

Annual Percentage Rate:
Number of Annual Payments:
Advance Payment:

Annual Payment:

Total Finance Charge:

State Sales Tax % (if any):
Total Amount:
Down Payment:
Amount Financed:

Amount Financed:

Quote valid for 30 days from the quote date listed above.

This quote is provided as a budgetary proposal.  Actual financing is based on approved credit and acceptance of TYMCO's lease/purchase 
documents.  Rates are subject to change.  First payment is due on delivery of the sweeper and annually thereafter.  No lease document fees and 
no prepayment penalties.  This quote is nonbinding until the lease is signed by both parties.

300200
Consolidated Disposal Systems
8110 Troon Circle Suite 170
Austell
Ryan Williams

City of Brunswick
601 Gloucester St.
Brunswick

1
600BAH

Purchase Price:

404-696-1530

912-267-5500

GA
31520

GA
30168

TYMCO ● P.O. Box 2368 ● Waco, Texas 76703-2368 ● 225 E Industrial Blvd ● Waco, Texas 76705

Phone: 254-799-5546 ● Toll Free: 800-258-9626 ● Fax: 254-799-2722 ● www.tymco.com Version 04/05/2022



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE OF CITY PARKS ALONG HIGHWAY 17 
CORRIDOR  

  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 7, 2024 

PURPOSE: 

Approval of a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. for landscape maintenance services at the city 
parks and public areas along the U.S. Highway 17 corridor 

HISTORY: 

Several of the parks and public rights-of-way along the U.S. Highway 17 corridor have been 
improved over the last few years in order to beautify the corridor and enhance the view for 
visitors and local citizens as they enter the city along Highway 17 and visit the city’s public 
parks. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

A request for proposals was published to solicit proposals for maintenance services.  The scope 
of the project includes Liberty Ship Park, Anchor monument, Overlook Park, Monument sign, 
Visitors’ Club, and City Hall / Joy Ringle Park, and Oak Grove Cemetery entrance.  The selected 
contractor will be responsible for all aspects of the maintenance of the squares including 
regularly-scheduled mowing and trimming, fertilization, pruning, irrigation, mulch, and other 
tasks.  

Three responses were received in response to the RFP.  One of the responses did not meet the 
minimum qualifications requested in the RFP.  The pricing of the other two proposal is: 

Coastal Greenery    $71,340 
Sea Island Landscape Services $74,520 

 
The proposal from Coastal Greenery met all the minimum requirements listed in the RFP and 
was the lower priced proposal.  Coastal Greenery also has a work history with the City of 
Brunswick as Coastal Greenery is currently maintaining the squares along Newcastle Street.  The 
service from Coastal Greenery for the squares has been excellent.  The Public Works department 
recommends moving forward with the Coastal Greenery proposal and agreement. 



Page | 2 
 

As part of the agreement for the landscaping services, the Public Works department will have 
selected staff members working closely with the contractor during the first few months of the 
contract (March – June) in order to learn more about plant care and some of the maintenance 
practices that are required at the City’s parks and squares.  After June, the areas at the Anchor 
Monument (4th Ave.) and the entrance to Oak  Grove Cemetery will be removed from the 
contract and will be maintained by City Public Works staff.  The contract price will be reduced 
and Coastal Greenery will move forward with maintenance of the remaining areas.   

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The costs of this landscape maintenance agreement will be paid through the General Fund 
budget.  Sufficient funds were budgeted in the FY 24 budget for this service. 

 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount of 
$71,340 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17 corridor. 

2. Do not authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount 
of $71,340 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17 
corridor. 

3. Take no action at this time. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount of 
$71,340 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17 corridor. 

 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Public Works  

 

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Coastal Greenery, Inc. in the amount of 
$71,340 for landscape maintenance services at the parks along the Highway 17 corridor. 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                   
      

1/30/24



Prepared for: City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Prepared by: Terry Godwin

Date: January 19, 2024



 

City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and Maintenance

Maintenance Proposal

Thank you for your interest in Coastal Greenery, Inc.  Over the past 29 years, we have been 
privileged to be a part of many clients’ mission to fulfill their individual landscape needs.  With 
this being said, I want you to feel confident in your decision to allow our team to serve you in 
this venture.  The Coastal Greenery Team possesses the education, training, and hands-on 
experience to manage your landscape with each service we offer.  Our team strongly believes that 
communicating with the client and educating the client are the keys to a great working 
relationship.   We want you to feel confident that our team’s number 1 goal is to provide you with 
the finest landscape services possible while working in the safest manner possible.   We are 
looking forward to building a lasting relationship with you as well as meeting all of your 
landscape needs. 

-Jeffrey Johns

Landscape Maintenance Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day 1/17/2024 12:00:00 AM , by and between: 

City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and Maintenance

525 Lakewood Ave.

Brunswick , Georgia 31520

(hereinafter referred to as "the Client") 

and

Coastal Greenery, Inc.

(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor")

NOW, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, the parties 
agree as follows:  The term of this Agreement shall commence on _March 1, 2024_, and shall 
continue until _February 28. 2027  unless sooner terminated by either party with 30 days 
written notice. Written notice of termination shall be addressed as follows:

Coastal Greenery Inc.
1242 Old Jesup Road

Brunswick, Georgia 31520



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Turf Healthcare Application #1

Turf areas will be treated with a Pre-emergent Herbicide to prevent weeds prior to their 
establishment.  Turf weeds (Winter) will be treated during the visit with a Post-emergent 
Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #2

Turf areas will be treated with a liquid Insecticide for control or emerging Spring insects.  Turf 
weeds will be spot treated during the visit with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best 
Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #3

Turf areas will be fertilized with a Nitrogen based granular fertilizer at a rate of One (1) Pound 
Nitrogen per Thousand (1,000) square feet.  Insects in turf will be treated with a granular 
insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be treated during the visit with a 
Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM).  
Fungicides may be required should pest occur, but are not included in the agreement.  Client will 
be notified and proposal with additional fees will be presented should fungicide be required.

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #4

Turf areas will be fertilized with a liquid Nitrogen based fertilizer.  Insects in turf will be treated 
with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be spot treated during 
the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest 
Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Turf Healthcare Application #5

Turf areas will be fertilized with a liquid turf fertilizer using minor nutrients for plant growth.    
Insects in turf will be treated with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf 
weeds will be spot treated during the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 3/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Turf Healthcare Application #6

Turf areas will be fertilized with a liquid Nitrogen based fertilizer.  Insects in turf will be treated 
with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be spot treated during 
the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated Pest 
Management (IPM). 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare.

Turf Healthcare Application #7

Turf areas will be treated with a Pre-emergent Herbicide as to prevent weds prior to their 
establishment.  Turf weeds will be treated during the visit with a Post-emergent Herbicide 
following Best Methods for Integrated Pest Management (IPM).  Fungicides may be required 
should pest occur, but are not included in the agreement.  Client will be notified and proposal 
with additional fees will be presented should fungicide be required. 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Turf Healthcare Application #8

Turf areas will be winterized with a potash application for root growth.  Insects in turf will be 
treated with liquid insecticide to control turf eating insects only.  Turf weeds will be spot treated 
during the visit if needed with a Post-emergent Herbicide following Best Methods for Integrated 
Pest Management (IPM).  Fungicides may be required should pest occur, but are not included in 
the agreement.  Client will be notified and proposal with additional fees will be presented should 
fungicide be required. 

Note:  Liberty Park has specific area turf healthcare. Visitor's center has specific area turf 
healthcare. City Hall has specific area healthcare. 

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #1

Evergreen plants/shrubbery will be fertilized with a nitrogen based granular fertilizer for plant 
growth promotion.  Trees and perennials/annuals are not included.

Note:  City Hall, Oak Grove Cemetery, Liberty Park, Visitor's Center and  Monument area  have 
specific area plant healthcare. 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 4/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #2

Evergreen plants/shrubbery will be treated with a liquid insecticide to control an over 
population of insects on plant material.  The best methods of Integrated Pest Management will 
be followed.  Trees and perennials/annuals are not included. 

Note:  City Hall, Oak Grove Cemetery, Liberty Park, Visitor's Center and  Monument area  have 
specific area plant healthcare.

Soil Test

In the month of December a soil test will be completed on your landscape. The soil will be sent 
to a certified lab to analyze proper fertilization and pest requirements for your landscape in the 
upcoming season. A copy of the results will be provided.

Water Management Services

Weathermatic SmartLink Water Management System: Coastal Greenery Inc. will install a 
Weathermatic SmartLink water and site management systems irrigation controller and weather 
sensor. This system will become property of the client. Included in the Weathermatic SmartLink 
Controller is a Total Equipment Protection Warranty which is an all-inclusive warranty that 
includes protection against lightening, theft or physical damage and provides a fixed cost of 
ownership. This warranty is valid as long as the client is a customer of Coastal Greenery Inc.

24 Hour System Management - Coastal Greenery Inc. will install a cellular Air Card and will 
monitor on a 24-hour basis and will contact the Client and/or Client Agent if there are any issues 
with water allocation. Coastal Greenery Inc. will program the system in a manner that promotes 
efficient use of water and healthy plant growth. Coastal Greenery Inc. retains ownership of the 
cellular communication equipment (Air Card). 

Quarterly Inspections- Coastal Greenery Inc. will check the client’s water system, quarterly 
using a SmartLink mobile inspection app. Every valve is opened, and the system is inspected 
thoroughly. At this time, Coastal Greenery Inc. will reset zone times according to seasonal 
changes. Coastal Greenery Inc. will provide the Client with photos documenting any major 
repair items needed and will note and report to client any symptoms of inadequate or excessive 
irrigation, drainage problems, etc

Annually - Coastal Greenery Inc. will recalibrate each zone following Cooperative Extension 
Service recommendations. 

Repairs or system service beyond the above scope will require a charge at an hourly rate per man 
plus materials. The client or client's agent will be notified, and approval given before repairs 
beyond the above scope are made. The Client understands that for Coastal Greenery Inc. 
to perform routine maintenance and repairs to the water system, it may be necessary to operate 
the system during Coastal Greenery Inc's. regular business hours. It is further acknowledged by 
Client that this is also the case when certain fertilizers and chemicals are applied. Coastal 
Greenery Inc. shall not be held liable for cleaning vehicles or any other items that get wet during 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 5/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

operation of the irrigation system.

Irrigation controllers: Oak Grove Cemetery entrance on little house, beds only (monitor existing 
controller). Liberty Park on block construct at base of bridge footing. Visitor's Center has 
controller on side of building. Monument sign area has controller on backside of monument. 
City Hall controller is shared with Newcastle Squares on corner of Newcastle and Gloucester.

Weekly Landscape Maintenance

Mowing, Edging and Trimming: All turf areas shall be mowed during the growing season not 
to exceed the specified number of visits per year.  During the dormant season, mowing will be 
done as needed. Clippings will be left on the lawn with no visible clumps remaining on the 
surface 24 hours after mowing. All hardscape areas (sidewalks, fences, driveways, parking areas) 
and softscape aras (tree rings, plant beds) will be edged with a steel blade edger, monofilament 
line trimmers and/or chemicals twice per month during the growing season.  Grass clippings will 
be blown from sidewalks, curbs, and roadways after mowing and/or trimming.  In periods of 
drought stress or dormancy, mowing, edging, and weedeating may be suspended. 

Pruning (Growing Season): Plants and shrubs will be pruned during the growing season as 
intended to remove new growth only and to maintain the intended shape of the plant.  Pruning is 
done by hand snips or powered sheers.  Tree pruning will be done once per year and is limited to 
branches below Seven (7) feet height.  Additional fees will apply to pruning of trees over Seven 
(7) feet height.  For safety, no trees will be pruned in or under utility lines.  Branches will be 
pruned just outside the branch collar. Pruning paint will not be applied. Sucker growth will be 
removed by hand from the base of trees. No herbicides will be used for this purpose. 

Pruning (Dormant Season): Pruning during the dormant season is intended to reshape, thin or 
invigorate plant material.  Evergreen hedges, hollies, roses, etc. will be hard pruned as needed.  
Crape Myrtles, if needed, will be pruned by only removing cross branches and seed heads.  
Perennials will be cut back to promote spring growth.  No guarantee that perennials will flush.  
Ornamental grasses such as Miscanthus, Muhly, and Pampas grass will be cut back to promote 
new growth.  This type of pruning will be done January- March.

Weed Control:  Weeds will be treated with post-emergent applications of herbicides in all plant 
beds or mulched areas using a target spray technique and/ or hand pulling. Weeds in hard 
surfaces (paved) areas will be controlled with line string trimmers or chemical treatments. 

Blowing:  Blowers are used to clean hard and soft surfaces of particle debris.  Any debris that 
will not be absorbed will be picked up. 

Spring Leaf Removal: Leaves on lawn areas, in shrubs, groundcovers and along curb lines will 
be picked up. During leaf drop all surfaces will be cleaned.  Disposal of debris and leaves will 
conform to the client’s desire. No on-site disposal will be done without prior approval.

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 6/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Palm Pruning

All Sabal (Cabbage) Palms and Washingtonia Palms over seven (7) feet in height will be trimmed 
once per year after seed heads have produced in the months of August and September. 
Trimming includes removal of seed heads, low hanging palm fronds and dead. Shucking of the 
tree bark will be completed at an additional charge if necessary. For safety, no palm trees will be 
pruned in or under utility lines. Palm trees with two (2) or more years of growth will require an 
additional upfront fee for pruning. Palms over twenty-two (22) feet in height will be an 
additional charge/fee.

Note: 81 palms counted as of 10/11/23.  (Liberty - 2, Anchor - 8, Overlook - 39, Monument - 9, 
Visitor's - 19, City Hall - 4.)

Spring Mulching  Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

All mulched areas shall be replenished with Wood Mulch at a depth not to exceed two (2) 
inches.  Spring mulch will be installed during the months of February/March/April.  Excess old 
mulch will not be removed.  If this is needed, additional fees may result.

Note:  

Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

Spring Pinestraw

All pinestraw areas shall be replenished with pinestraw at a depth not to exceed  two (2) 
inches.  Spring pinestraw will be installed during the months of February/March/April.  Excess 
old pinestraw will not be removed.  If this is needed, additional fees may result.

Note: Straw is for Visitor's Center and Oak Grove Cemetery beds.

Fall Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

All mulched areas shall be replenished with Wood Mulch at a depth not to exceed two (2) 
inches.  Fall mulch will be installed during the months of 
September/October/November.  Excess old mulch will not be removed.  If this is needed, 
additional fees may result.

Note:  

Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign

Fall Pinestraw

All pinestraw areas shall be replenished with pinestraw at a depth not to exceed two (2) 
inches.  Fall pinestraw will be installed during the months of 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 7/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

September/October/November.  Excess old pinestraw will not be removed.  If this is needed, 
additional fees may result.

Note: Straw is for Visitor's Center and Oak Grove Cemetery beds.

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 8/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

Agreement Terms and Conditions

I. CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY: 

A. Performance: The Contractor shall be responsible for the performance of all work 
agreed upon in accordance with the “Scope of Work” but shall not be responsible for any 
condition caused by an act of God i.e. tropical storms, hurricanes, or any unforeseen 
intervening factor which may arise during the term of this Agreement, or subsequent time 
thereafter. In the event that weather prevents work from being performed on any day or 
date agreed to in this Agreement, the Contractor will strive to perform the work as soon 
thereafter as the Contractor is reasonably able to perform. 

The Contractor reserves the right to amend this Agreement when the Scope of Work is 
affected by changes to any local, state, and/or federal law, regulation or ordinance that goes 
into effect after this Agreement is signed. 

The Contractor shall amend this Agreement, in writing, when any additions or deletions 
occur to the landscape and /or irrigation system within the Scope Of Work set forth within 
this Agreement. The Contractor will obtain written or verbal permission before performing 
any additional work outside the Scope of Work and the Contractor will invoice the Client 
accordingly. 

The Contractor will schedule the Scope of Work according to the requirements of the Client 
and will in no way interfere with the normal routine of the Clients tenants, visitors, and/or 
employees. 

B. Workforce: The Contractor shall assign a trained workforce with experience in the 
“Scope of Work” being provided. The workforce will be presentable and identifiable at all 
times. The workforce shall be competent, qualified, drug-free, and U.S. citizens or legally 
authorized to work in the United States. The Contractor reserves the right to hire qualified 
subcontractors to perform specialized functions or work requiring specialized equipment. 

C. Materials: All materials shall conform the bid specifications. The Contractor will meet 
and comply with all agricultural licensing and reporting requirements. The Contractor shall 
pay all sales taxes on materials where applicable. 

D. Licenses and Permits: The Contractor will maintain State of Georgia Level 1A Soil 
and Erosion Licenses as required by law, State of Georgia Category 24 Ornamental & Turf 
Pest Control Licenses as required by law, and state certification in CPR & First Aid from the 
American Red Cross. Furthermore, the Contractor will comply with all other licenses and 
permits required by county, state and federal governments whereas the Scope of Work 
necessitates. 

E. Insurances: The Contractor will maintain $2,000,000 General Liability Insurance and 
Full Workers Compensation Insurance on all workforce and any other insurance at the 
discretion of the Contractor or required by law. Additionally, the Contractor will require the 
same of any sub-contractor and will provide certificates of insurance upon Client request. 

F. Liability: It is understood and agreed that the Contractor is not liable for any damage 
of any kind that is not caused by the negligence of the Contractor, its agents, contractors, or 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 9/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

employees, including but not limited to: death or decline of plant material due to improper 
selection, placement, planting or maintenance before the time of this Agreement; damage 
due to improper irrigation components in existence at the time of this Agreement 
execution; exposed cables/wires or sprinkler components/lines normally found below the 
surface of the lawn; flooding, storm or wind damage; disease or damage to lawns or 
landscape plants caused by excessive irrigation or lack of water due to inoperative 
components provided it reported these to the Client, irrigation restrictions imposed by local 
water management authorities or civil authorities or lack of irrigation and/or coverage; 
damage caused by any item hidden in the landscape and not clearly guarded or marked; 
and damage due to vandalism. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein, Contractor shall at all times be liable for the negligence and willful misconduct of its 
agents, employees, representatives, and contractors.

G. Underground Utilities: The Contractor will notify the Georgia Utilities Protection 
Agency prior to any installation project for the purpose of marking underground public 
utilities. Every effort will be made to avoid damaging any underground utilities. The 
Contractor will not be held liable for damage to telephone, electric, gas or water lines if they 
are not located where marked. Furthermore, the Contractor will not be held liable for 
damage to invisible fencing, irrigation systems, cable, phone, or private utilities such as, but 
not limited to, lamppost and outdoor lighting lines if these are not properly marked. Fees to 
repair any damage will be the responsibility of the Client. Non-public utility lines may be 
marked by the Contractor who installed them. 

H. Invoicing: The Contractor will submit monthly invoices for work performed within the 
Scope of Work included in this Agreement. All work will be invoiced on a per agreement 
basis and are due Thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. 

Any services performed outside the Scope of Work specified in this Agreement will be 
approved, completed, and invoiced separately. All additional work performed will be 
invoiced and due upon receipt of the invoice. 

II. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY:

A. Utility Usage: The Client shall allow the Contractor, its agents and employees, the 
usage of the utilities on site if needed. Utilities used but not limited to: water and 
electricity. 

B. Payment:   Client will receive an invoice at the end of every month, for the upcoming 
month’s service to be performed and is due Thirty (30) days from the invoice date.  Any 
additional services outside of this Agreement approved by the client will be billed 
separately.  This payment plan is considered to be a “Balanced Billing Plan” and doesn’t 
necessarily reflect the amount of work performed during the month that it was invoiced.  
Should a cancellation of this Agreement occur a reconciliation of services rendered shall be 
provided and any services rendered and not paid shall be paid in full to the Contractor 
within Thirty (30) days of cancellation date.

The Client is considered delinquent if the payment has not reached the Contractor’s office 
by the due date on the invoice. If an invoice becomes forty-five (45) days past due, the 
Contractor reserves the right to suspend services immediately by giving written notice of 
action for nonpayment. After sixty-five (65) days past due, the Contractor will proceed with 

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 10/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

legal action they deem necessary to collect the balance due on the Client’s account.  The 
Client will then be responsible for the balance on the account plus all expenses associated to
collections, but not limited to court filings and attorney fees.

C. Corrections: The Client shall give the Contractor at least thirty (30) days to correct 
any problem or defect discovered in the performance of the Scope of Work contained in this 
Agreement. The Contractor may provide compensation at its discretion if defects are not 
correctable to the satisfaction of the Client.

III. OTHER TERMS:

A. Renewal: This Agreement is good for three (3) consecutive years with all of its terms 
and conditions, unless other arrangements are stated.  A three percent (3%) annual pay 
increase will occur after the first 12 months and another after the first 24 months of this 
Agreement. 

B. Wind/Hurricane Damage: Damage to landscape caused by winds, tidal surges, and 
or flooding such as broken limbs, down trees, yard debris will be cleaned by Coastal 
Greenery at an additional cost to this Agreement. This work will be invoiced at an hourly 
rate plus debris hauling/waste removal fees.

C. Quoted Price: The quoted agreement price within this Agreement shall be valid for a 
period of thirty (30) days from the date submitted. 

D. Cancellation: This Agreement may be canceled by either party upon a thirty (30) day 
written notice. In the event this Maintenance Agreement is terminated within the first 12-
months of the Smart Water Management Upgrade, a balance of five hundred dollars 
($500.00) will become due and payable immediately. In the event of the maintenance 
termination, the property would retain the smart controller(s) and weather station(s) which 
will continue to function in the same intelligent way, yet no longer have the cloud-based 
software, data/reporting and remote connectivity capabilities.

E. Independent Contractor: It is the express intention of the parties that the 
Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an employee, agent, joint venture or 
partner of  the Client. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as 
creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Client and 
Contractor or any employee or agent of Contractor or for any other purpose. Contractor and 
its agents are not entitled to participate in any benefits that the Client provides for its 
employees. Contractor shall retain the right to provide similar services to other clients while
currently engaged in an Agreement with the Client. Because of the Contractor's 
independent contractor status, no tax withholding shall be made from the payments 
contemplated in this Agreement. Contractor is responsible for paying all state and federal 
taxes as required by law.

F. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Georgia.

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 11/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

IV. CONTRACT PRICING AND SIGNATURES:

Payments are to be made over 12 monthly installments.

AGREEMENT SUMMARY

SERVICES OCCURS PRICE

Turf Healthcare Application #1 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #2 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #3 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #4 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #5 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #6 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #7 1 $390.37

Turf Healthcare Application #8 1 $390.37

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #1 1 $229.43

Plant/Shrub Healthcare Application #2 1 $229.43

Soil Test 1 $183.22

Water Management Services 4 $4,036.68

Weekly Landscape Maintenance 52 $48,079.20

Palm Pruning 1 $3,495.30

Spring Mulching  Anchor Monument , Monument Sign 1 $5,195.88

Spring Pinestraw 1 $785.90

Fall Mulching Anchor Monument , Monument Sign 1 $5,195.88

Fall Pinestraw 1 $786.12

TOTAL $71,340.00

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 12/13



City of Brunswick Parks Landscape and
Maintenance

Opportunity No. -
27808

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

INVOICE MONTH PRICE

March $5,945.00

April $5,945.00

May $5,945.00

June $5,945.00

July $5,945.00

August $5,945.00

September $5,945.00

October $5,945.00

November $5,945.00

December $5,945.00

January $5,945.00

February $5,945.00

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $71,340.00

Coastal Greenery, Inc. City of Brunswick Parks
Landscape and Maintenance

By By

Terry Godwin

1/19/2024Date Date

BILLING INFORMATION:

Name:

Title:

Email  Address:

Phone #:

Billing Address:

**All invoices are emailed unless specified**

Coastal Greenery, Inc. • 1242 Old Jesup Road  • Brunswick, GA 31520 Page 13/13



Liberty Ship Park 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Polygonal Line



Anchor Monument 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Polygonal Line

galberson
Callout
Anchor Monument



Overlook Park 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Polygonal Line



Monument Sign 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Polygonal Line



Visitors' Club 

N

➤➤

N

galberson
Polygonal Line



City Hall 

N ➤➤N

galberson
Polygonal Line



Oak Grove Cemetery 
Planting Beds at Entrance 

N ➤➤N

galberson
Polygonal Line



1/30/24







1/30/2442024



1/30/2024





Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A 
VEHICLE FOR EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY COORDINATOR 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             2/7/2024 

 

PURPOSE:   

1. Emergency Management Agency (EMA) Coordinator Vehicle 

With the hiring and appointing of an EMA Coordinator to enhance our emergency preparedness 
and capabilities, we must also facilitate their efficient service to the community. As such, we are 
requesting funds to purchase a dedicated vehicle for this position. The purchase of this vehicle 
will not only provide this position with reliable transportation complete with the needed 
capabilities, but it will also allow us to replace a much older and unreliable vehicle with a safer 
vehicle for transportation to and from various training events. 

Additionally, while it may at times be financially wise to purchase used vehicles, we are 
requesting the purchase of a new/newer vehicle. After extensive research, we have found the 
savings do not outweigh the benefits of buying used in the current vehicle market. In many 
instances, for the make and model being researched (Ford Explorer), we found that a savings of 
$3,000 - $4,000 came with the wear and tear of approximately 25,000 conservatively. If our goal 
is to maximize budgetary efficiency when making purchases such as these, we believe it is in the 
City’s best interest to purchase a new vehicle in which it’s condition and usage can be verified 
and extended for maximum effectiveness. 
 

HISTORY: 

The Brunswick Fire Department has a long-standing commitment to ensuring the safety of our 
community. Over the years, we have faced evolving challenges and responsibilities, necessitating 
updates, improvements, and additions to personnel. The proposed purchase of a dedicated 
vehicle for our EMA personnel aligns with our mission to provide the highest level of emergency 
services to the community as well as caring for the needs of our personnel. 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

1. Truck 20 (the vehicle currently being utilized by EMA personnel) has approximately 
175,000 miles on the engine. 



Page | 2 
 

2. The current vehicle that is dedicated to department travel and training has degraded to the 
point of needing extensive and constant repairs and has left multiple members stranded 
sometimes hours away from our jurisdiction. It is no longer feasible or financially 
responsible to continue dedicating funds to this vehicle. 

3. While the vehicle being utilized by EMA personnel is in reasonable working order, it 
does not facilitate the needs of the position fully. 

4. The EMA position plays a crucial role in enhancing our community’s emergency 
preparedness and response capabilities. The dedicated vehicle for the EMA Coordinator 
will facilitate timely and effective operations for years to come. 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: $50,000.00 – Requesting funding from SPLOST funds 
dedicated to Brunswick Fire Department. 

 

OPTIONS: 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

The proposed initiatives are crucial for the continued effectiveness of our Fire Department in 
safeguarding the City of Brunswick. We kindly request the Finance Committee’s support in 
allocating the necessary funds to the purchase of the EMA personnel vehicle.  

 

DEPARTMENT: Brunswick Fire Department 

 

Prepared by: Laurence A. Cargile, Assistant Fire Chief 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                       

1/31/24



 
Customer: Laurance Cargile  Phone: (912) 280-1219
Address: BRUNSWICK, GA 31520 Email: Lcargile@cityofbrunswick-

ga.gov 

 
Date: 01/23/2024  9:03 AM  Manager: Fadil Ababseh
ID: 58946763  Associate: Geordy Pinzon
 

VEHICLE
  2023 Ford Explorer K7D  XLT

Stock #: PGB80591
Mileage: 5
VIN: 1FMSK7DH2PGB80591
Warranty: Manufacturer Warranty

 

PRICE INDEX

 
$ 44,280

$ 42,151
$ 41,449

 $702 below Edmunds® value *
     

PURCHASE OPTION

 MSRP    $44,280.00 

 AutoNation Savings -  $2,831.00 

 AutoNation Price    $41,449.00 

 Sales Tax (estimate): +   

 Tire/Battery/MVWEA + $ 6.50 

 Electronic Filing Fee + $199.00 

 Dealer Services Fee**** + $995.00 

 Reg/Tag/Title Fees + $50.00 

 Balance Due (estimate):   $42,699.50 

 

TRADE

We'll Buy Your Car
We  provide  a  Guaranteed  Trade-In
Offer honored for 7 days or 500 miles
at any of our locations.

      
 Notes:
Ask how you can protect your vehicle tomorrow with a Vehicle Service Contract today! This menu is provided to you, our customer, to assist you in better understanding the
financial options available. **Appearance, Windshield, Theft and Dent Protection coverages are optional. Appearance Protection Products (fabric, leather and paint) have been
pre-applied to the vehicle. Amounts above are ESTIMATES ONLY and may vary based on approved credit, applicable taxes, vehicle selection, trade value(s), estimated payoff,
eligibility for rebates and other factors particular to your transaction. Final payments and terms may vary. Customer agrees to pay the difference, if any, in the amount of the trade lien
payoff. The Price Index does not include dealer/documentation fee, tax, registration, titling, or other government fees. Third party prices fluctuate daily/weekly and are provided as of
01/23/2024. Third party trademarks shown above are the property of their respective owners. Price quoted expires 01/24/2024.****This charge represents costs and profit to the
dealer for items such as inspecting, cleaning, and adjusting vehicles, and preparing documents related to the sale.

X 01/23/2024 
  X 01/23/2024 

 Buyer: Laurance Cargile Date   Sales Manager Date 


	Agenda
	Encl. 1 - ACCELER8 Program. Lucus Ctr.
	Encl. 2 - 1.17.24 Minutes
	Encl. 3 - Alcohol License Renewal - Cool on Cool
	Encl. 4 - 3210 Glynn Ave. Site Plan
	Encl. 5 - Pension Plan Amendment 17
	Encl. 6 - Nov.Dec. Financials
	Encl. 7 - Public Works Vehicle Surplus
	Encl. 8 - HCP Athletic Field Improvements
	Encl. 9 - Sweet Sweeper Purchase
	Encl. 10 - Hwy 17 Corridor Parks Maint.
	Encl. 11 - Old City Hall Repairs
	Encl. 12 - EMA Vehicle Purchase



